
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING – FEBRUARY 4, 2015 
 
In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Law, Notification of this Meeting has been sent to our 
Official Newspapers and Notice has been posted on the Bulletin Board at Borough Hall.  The meeting 
will start at 7:30 PM and adjourn at 11:00 PM. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all present. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig read the FIRE SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENT.  She read the PREAMBLE. 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT Mayor Bivona, Mr. Kahwaty, Mr. Gostkowski, Mr. Lauber, Mr. Pullaro, Mrs. Vierheilig, 

Mr. Lazerowitz, Mr. Linz, Mr. Sheppard   
  
 
  Eileen Boland, Boswell Engineering 
  John A. Spizziri, Sr., Esq., Board Attorney 
  Elizabeth McManus, P.P., Borough Planner 
 
BOARD DISCUSSION 
 
Approval of the minutes of the October 15th, 2014, December 10th, 2014, December 17th, 2014, 
January 7th, 2015, and January 13, 2015, and January 21st, 2015 were carried to the next meeting of 
the Planning Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
COMPLETENESS DETERMINATION 
 
FLK-2846 THE ALPERT GROUP, FRANKLIN LAKES SUPPORTIVE HOUSING URBAN RENEWAL, 
LP, 720 MCCOY ROAD, BLOCK 1408, LOT 1, BLOCK 1406, LOT 2, COMPLETENESS 
DETERMINATION, SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Bruce E. Whitaker, Esq., attorney for the Applicant, was present at this meeting.  
 
Mr. Spizziri stated he had received and reviewed all necessary documentation from the Applicant’s 
attorney and had prepared and forwarded a letter of jurisdiction to the Board.  
 
Mr. Whitaker stated that he had reviewed Boswell’s report of February 20th, 2015.  He explained that 
this application is a proposal for redevelopment of the area on McCoy Road for 40 one bedroom 
apartment units in one building, as well as another building for recreational purposes. He had the 
opportunity to review Boswell’s report and there were two observations made about variance relief.   
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
2-4-15 
PAGE 2 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The plans submitted by the applicant’s engineer are going to be revised to eliminate both variances.  
 
Ms. Boland stated the applicant is requesting a waiver from providing an environmental impact 
statement.  She asked Mr. Whitaker if the applicant is willing to provide testimony at the public hearing 
regarding the remaining items.  
 
Mr. Whitaker said yes.  
 
Mrs. Vierheilig asked if there was any way for the Board to get a copy of the environmental report done 
for the prior application on this property.  
 
Ms. Boland said absolutely and that she would make copies for the Board.  
 
Mr. Lauber said last spring he attended a meeting and looked over this track and everyone had pretty 
much agreed with access to it off of McCoy.  
 
Mr. Linz said he thought that was the plan, because if they had one way in and out of the facility he 
liked the idea for emergency reasons.  
 
A motion to deem the application complete and schedule it for the March 18th meeting was moved by 
Mr. Lazerowitz and seconded by Mr. Lauber.  
 
Roll Call: 
 
Yes Mayor Bivona, Mr. Kahwaty, Mr. Gostkowski, Mr. Lauber, Mr. Pullaro, Mrs. Vierheilig,  

Mr. Lazerowitz, Mr. Linz, Mr. Sheppard 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
SLFLK-2800 TOLL BROTHERS, APPLICANT/CONTRACT PURCHASER, GALENKAMP 
BROTHERS & DAVID MCBRIDE, OWNERS, 845 EWING AVENUE, BLOCK 3104, LOT 1, BLOCK 
3105, LOT 1, BLOCK 3205, LOT 2, BLOCK 3206, LOTS 1, 1.01, 1.02, 2, BLOCK 3207, LOTS 3 & 5, 
AND BLOCK 3208, LOTS 2, 3, 4, 8-20-14 DEEEMD CONDITIONALLY COMPLETE, 10-17-14 
DEEMED COMPLETE, DETERMINATION DATE 2-4-15, 1ST HEARING 11-5-14, 2ND HEARING 
(SPECIAL) 12-10-14, 3RD HEARING (SPECIAL) 1-13-15, 4TH HEARING (SPECIAL) 1-21-15, 5TH 
HEARING 2-4-15  
 
Richard Hoff, Esq., attorney for the applicant, Craig Cherry, Vice President of Toll Brothers, Mark 
Mayhew, P.E., were present at this meeting.  
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
2-4-15 
PAGE 3 
 
Mr. Lauber recused himself from this application. 
 
Mr. Spizziri swore in Omar El Rafei.  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. El Rafei stated that he is a member of the Franklin Lakes Environmental Commission. A report was 
prepared in which he had participated as an author. It is to be considered as a report from the Franklin 
Lakes Environmental Commission. He testified that the Commission wanted to support the Planning 
Board in this process with its primary concern not to see the development of this property having 
drastic site changes. Also it desires to assure all that those AOC’s are being addressed correctly.  
 
Mr. Hoff and members of the Planning Board and Mr. Boswell questioned Mr. El Rafei concerning 
environmental issues as contained in the Commission’s report.  
 
Board member Joseph Pullaro questioned the issue of providing bike paths.  
 
Mr. El Rafei said that the Commission does recommend them.  
 
Mr. Hoff clarified that none are being proposed beyond the walkways.  Mr. Hoff addressed all issues in 
the Commission’s report. There was further conversation that addressed plans for identifying trees that 
may be saved. 

 
Mr. Spizziri swore in Craig Cherry.  
 
Mr. Cherry stated he was the Vice President of Toll.  He testified that he has been involved with this 
application from early on. Mr. Cherry explained that Toll has followed “green” building practices for his 
sixteen years with the company.  However, he testified that neither solar panels nor charging stations 
were available options in Toll homes.  He stated that in his experience there was no demand from 
potential Buyers for those enhancements.  

 
Mr. Boswell, having been sworn in previously, testified as to the reports from his office of January 26th, 
January 30th, and February 2nd.  He testified that he had forwarded two documents. The first was 
flood hazard areas and riparian zone verification dated April 27, 2010. The owners also dealt with the 
DEP via submissions back in 2009 and 2010. The DEP then responded and identified those areas 
which are floodways - flood plain riparian buffers. The next document is the LOI (letter of interpretation) 
dated May 19, 2011. That resulted in a site inspection by DEP on September 20, 2010 and then issued 
a LOI based upon the report of November 16, 2009.  Mr. Boswell discussed the wetland and buffer 
distinctions and how this proposed site plan would interact with those related restrictions.  He also went 
through his comment letter point by point regarding open items on the entire site plan. 

 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
2-4-15 
PAGE 4 
 
Mr. Mayhew P.E. testified regarding the environmental and wetlands issues based upon Mr. Boswell’s 
comment letter and subsequent discussion.  

 
Elizabeth McManus testified as to her initial report dated October 20th 2014 and her January 9th 2015 
update of same.  She directed her testimony to page 11 labeled building designs, which has been 
satisfied by the Applicant together with 8.1, 8.2, 8.4, 8.5; and 8.6, 8.7 as well as 8.8 and 8.9.  She 
recommended that the proposed dumpster area be relocated due to the minimal setback of 14 feet 
from existing buildings to a location.  However, Ms. McManus acknowledged that such relocation would 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

create another variance for the project.  
 
Mr. Mayhew P.E. and Mr. Hoff indicated that Toll would not be comfortable in relocating the dumpster 
so as to create another variance.   
 
Ms. McManus stated that this would be a C-2 variance request. Items 8.8 and 8.9 deal with the design 
of the detention basins, revised to eliminate the detention basin be screened. The Applicant shall 
provide plans for the improvement of the areas around the detention basins and coordinate them with 
Mr. Boswell’s office.  
 
Mr. Mayhew also pointed out that all of these stormwater structures shall be designed in accordance 
with the DEP criteria.   
 
Ms. McManus further testified that many of the items in her reports have already been agreed to by the 
Applicant.  
 
A motion to carry the public hearing to March 4th was moved by Mr. Sheppard and seconded by Mr. 
Pullaro.  
 
A complete transcript of the for the SLFLK-2800 Toll Brothers application public hearing was provided 
by Deborah J. Telepun, CCR, of Tate & Tate Certified Court Reporters. It is available for review in the 
Planning Board office. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Yes Mayor Bivona, Mr. Kahwaty, Mr. Gostkowski, Mr. Pullaro, Mrs. Vierheilig, Mr. Lazerowitz,  

Mr. Linz, Mr. Sheppard. 
 
A motion to approve the vouchers was moved by Mr. Kahwaty and seconded.  

 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
2-4-15 
PAGE 5 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Yes Mayor Bivona, Mr. Kahwaty, Mr. Gostkowski, Mr. Lauber, Mr. Pullaro, Mrs. Vierheilig,  
 Mr. Lazerowitz, Mr. Linz, Mr. Sheppard.  
 
A motion to adjourn was moved by Mr. Kahwaty and seconded by Mr. Sheppard. All those in favor 
(aye). 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:20 p.m. by Chairwoman Vierheilig. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Planning Board of the Borough of Franklin Lakes will be on February 
18, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Minutes submitted by: Caitlin Bauer – Recording Secretary.  


